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Directorate-General for Parliamentary Research Services 

Directorate C - Impact Assessment and European Added Value 

 

Call for tenders EPRS/IMPT/SER/14/013 - Q&A 

 

Subject:  Open Call for Tender for a Multiple Framework Contract in twelve (12) 

lots for the provision of external expertise in the field of Ex-Post Impact 

Assessment and Evaluation. 
 

Ref.: TED Contract notice: 2015/S 036-060453 published in OJ/S S36  

 Invitation to Tender: EPRS/IMPT/SER/14/013 

 

 

Dear Madam, Dear Sir, 

 

Following the publication of the Contract Notice 060453 in the Official Journal of the 

European Union 2015/S 036 on 20 February 2015, the following questions have been 

received. 

Question 1:   

Request for clarification concerning a potential conflict of interest: 

We have recently submitted an offer for a Framework Contract for the provision of evaluation 

services to the European Commission which also comprises support to the Commission in 

relation to impact assessments.  

Obviously, there would be a specific conflict of interest between the Commission and EP 

contracts in the case of impact assessments of the same policies/policy instruments. However, 

would a potential participation in the Commission's framework contract per se constitute a 

general conflict of interest with the EP framework contract EPRS/IMPT/SER/14/013?  

Answer 1: 

Participation in several tendering procedures on similar subjects as such, does not constitute a 

conflict of interest, nor does the award of a global framework contract.  

The conflicts of interest in the case of impact assessments of the same policies/policy 

instruments will be addressed at the level of specific calls for proposal, where the framework 

contractor must inform the EP/other EU institution about the conflicting situation and shall not 

submit an offer (see Annex I - Terms of Reference, art. 11 Duty of Information, last 

paragraph). 

As a result a potential participation in a Commission framework contract per se does not 

constitute a general conflict of interest with the EP framework contract 

EPRS/IMPT/SER/14/013. 
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Question 2:  

Regarding the deadline for receiving questions, we are unsure whether this is the 27
th

 of 

March (as indicated on page 2 of the Letter of Invitation) or the 15
th

 of April (as noted in page 

3 of the conditions for submitting a tender). Please let us know which of these dates the 

definitive deadline for submitting questions is.  

Answer 2:  

The deadline for receiving questions is 15 April 2015, as mentioned in the conditions for 

submitting a tender.  

Question 3:  

Regarding the two electronic copies which must be provided (as indicated on page 4 of the 

conditions for submitting a tender), could you please provide us with further information on 

the exact content of each CD? Should part II (technical) and III (financial) be submitted in 

separate CDs? 

Answer 3:  

Each electronic copy should contain the entire tender. It should exactly reflect the paper 

version. 

Question 4:  

In reference to the European Parliament’s Environmental Policy (Annex 15), if we submit an 

offer for various lots, is it necessary for us to submit a copy of our administrative 

documentation (in printed paper) for each of the lots? Is there a possibility for us to submit an 

electronic copy of this? 

Answer 4:  

If you submit tenders for different lots, each tender should contain the entire documentation, 

in the paper version as well as in the electronic version. 

Question 5:  

Following the publication of the Contract Notice 060453 in the Official Journal of the 

European Union 2015/S 036 on 20 February 2015, we refer to the text of the document of 

Appendix 3: “The specifications and the annexes thereto (PDF)” , chapter 3.1.3 (Content and 

form), page 4:  

“The total duration of the contract shall be twelve (12) months, tacitly renewable three (3) 

times for a total maximum duration of forty-eight (48) months. Performance of the contract 

shall not begin until the framework contract is signed. Any renewal of the contract shall take 

place in accordance with the terms laid down in the contract. The contract is divided into 

twelve (12) lots (see full description of lots in Annex I to the specifications). Tenderers may 

submit a tender for one or more lots. The lots are independent of each other and may be 

awarded to different tenderers. The European Parliament reserves the right to award only one 

lot or some of the total number of lots envisaged.  

 The total maximum value of the contract is EUR 2.000.000 (two million EUR).” 
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It does not seem completely unequivocal whether this indicated total maximum value of EUR 

2.000.000 refers to the  

 •         Initial total duration of the contract, i.e. the first twelve months, i.e. to each of the 

twelve months intervals, or to the 

•         Total maximum duration of the contract, i.e. forty-eight months. 

In order to have a perception about the total volume to be expected per single lot (and per 

year), we would like to ask for a clarification. 

 

Answer 5:  

 

The maximum value of EUR 2.000.000 refers to the total maximum duration of the contract 

(forty-eight months). 

 

See also "Specifications" to this Open Call for Tender: 

 

 Page 4, Chapter 3.1.3 "Content and form", last paragraph: 

No assurance is, however, given as to the volume, value and frequency of assignments under 

this framework contract. There is no obligation on the Parliament's side to use the maximum 

budget allocated to the contract. It does not confer on the contractor any exclusive right to 

provide the services described in this document. 

 

 Page 7, Chapter 8 "Prices", last paragraph: 

Tenderers are reminded that a framework service contract does not constitute an obligation on 

the European Parliament to use any part of the budget allocated to the framework service 

contract. 

 

Question 6:  
 

Having reviewed the documentation for the Open call for tender for a multiple framework 

contract in 12 lots for the provision of external expertise in the field of 'ex post' impact 

assessment and evaluation, I have the following question: 

 

Selection criterion 5 (SC 5) is defined as “Publications on relevant issues in the specialised 

and/or academic press carried out in the past five years. Tenderers must submit a list of 

publications and can submit further documents that they deem of use in assessing their 

tender.” 

 

We have carried out a large number of evaluations, impact assessments and other studies, 

many of which have been made public by our clients. Do you consider such published 

evaluation reports as relevant for fulfilling SC5? 

 

Answer 6:  
 

Published evaluation reports, impact assessments and other studies will be considered relevant 

for fulfilling Selection criterion 5 if it can be demonstrated that these were carried out by the 

tenderers in the past five years. 
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Question 7:  
 

We fully understand that at this stage it is quite complex for the European Parliament to give 

an indication of its evaluation needs over the 4-years implementation of the Framework 

Contract. We also take note of point 7 of the Terms of References (page 13) stating that "no 

assurance is given as to the volume, value and frequency of assignments under this framework 

contract".  

 

However, in order to best plan our resources and have an idea on the input required from 

contractors during the Framework contract, we should be very grateful if you could provide us 

with your envisaged pipeline of projects or number of requests that might be issued under the 

Framework Contract, as well as an indication on the budget size that would be typical for such 

assignments. 

 

Answer 7:  
 

The number of requests and the value and volume of the specific contracts depend on the 

needs of the different EU parliamentary committees throughout their political work. 

 

See also Answer 5 in this document. 

 

Question 8:  
 

Question regarding subcontracting: 

 

If you include in the tender bid external experts (experts engaged just for this tender but not 

working under contract for the tenderer), do we have to consider them subcontractors? If not, 

should we ask them to provide a letter of intent/understating statement? 

 

Answer 8:  
 

External experts who shall invoice the tenderer for a service are considered as subcontractors. 

Regarding requirements governing Subcontracting refer to Specifications to the tender, page 

6, point 6. Subcontracting, and to Annex IV to the Specifications. 

 

Question 9:  
 

A. Joint or group tender: we are submitting, jointly, with other institution a proposal; among 

the consortium there is no legal link, should we consider that we are submitting a joint 

tender? 

 

B. Conditions for submitting a tender, page 4, I-Administrative Part; Section 1: if we are not 

an association I understand that we don’t have to submit any of these documents. Are we 

right? 

 

C. Tender submission form, page 3; Joint or group tender states: “Please note that a Tender 

Form for each submitting parties concerned must be included” - what does that mean? 

That each partner should fill in and send a Tender Form? 
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D. Tender submission form, page 6; Selection criteria - should each partner provide 

statements from the Banks and financial statements? Should we also send prove of legal 

status? 

 

Answer 9:  
 

A. If the tender is submitted by more than one economic operator, on an equal basis, then it is 

considered to be a joint tender submitted by a consortium of economic operators. 

Regarding requirements governing Consortiums of Economic Operators, refer to 

Specifications to the tender, pages 5 and 6, point 5. Consortiums of Economic Operators, 

and to Annex III to the Specifications. 

 

B. Each member of the consortium shall submit documents reflecting its legal status, and 

Annex III (information sheet concerning consortiums of economic operators) shall be 

completed, dated and signed. These documents shall be included in the tender's 

Administrative Part, in a Section entitled ‘Memorandum and articles of association - 

Consortiums’. Refer also to Specifications to the tender, pages 5 and 6, point 5. 

Consortiums of Economic Operators, and to Annex III to the Specifications. 

 

C. Yes, each partner of the Consortiums of Economic Operators shall fill in and sign a 

Tender Submission Form.  

 

D. Yes, each partner shall provide financial information (appropriate statements from banks 

or evidence of professional risk indemnity insurance and the financial statements for the 

last 3 years for which the accounts have been closed) and prove of legal status. With 

regard to the selection criteria, the European Parliament may rely on the capacity of the 

other members of the consortium in order to establish whether the tenderer will have the 

resources needed to perform the contract. In this case an undertaking shall be required 

from those members stating that they will make available to the other members the 

resources needed to perform the contract. Refer also to Specifications to the tender, pages 

5 and 6, point 5. Consortiums of Economic Operators, and to Annex III to the 

Specifications. 

 

Question 10:  
 

With reference to the Conditions for submitting a tender, page 4, I-Administrative Part; 

Section 1: 

 

'The articles of association of the firm acting as representative, or of each firm in the case of a 

consortium of economic operators, together with details of its registered office, capital 

structure, shareholders, holdings and the composition of its board of directors, or any other 

document reflecting the legal status of the economic operator.' 

 

Does it apply just to the lead partner or to all the members of a consortium? 

 

Answer 10:  
 

Each member of the consortium shall submit documents reflecting its legal status, and Annex 

III (information sheet concerning consortiums of economic operators) shall be completed, 

dated and signed. These documents shall be included in the tender's Administrative Part, in a 
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Section entitled ‘Memorandum and articles of association - Consortiums’. Refer also to 

Specifications to the tender, pages 5 and 6, point 5. Consortiums of Economic Operators, and 

to Annex III to the Specifications. 

 

Question 11:  
 

According to the terms of references, part 3.2 (p5), first paragraph, "the tenderers must 

provide a concise description of what they consider to be the five most important challenges 

which the EU faces in the respective policy area over the next five years”. To avoid any 

confusion, does this mean that tenderers must present five main challenges overall for each 

lot, or five main challenges for each policy area within each lot? Taking lot 4 as an example, 

should tenderers present five policy challenges for Industry, five for Research and another five 

for Energy? 

 

Answer 11:  
 

It is left to the discretion of the potential tenderers whether they shall present the five 

challenges per policy area within a lot, or for the lot as a whole. Both approaches will be 

deemed acceptable for the evaluation of this award criterion. 

 

Question 12:  
 

We have three questions regarding the Open call for tender for a multiple framework contract 

in twelve (12) lots for the provision of external expertise in the field of ex-post impact 

assessment and evaluation.  

 

Q1: 

Appendix 2 (Conditions for submitting a tender), section 4 (Content and presentation of 

tenders) details the structure of the tender in three parts, sections and corresponding contents.  

Can you please clearly specify whether to include Annex II (Tender submission form) in any 

of these parts & sections, and if yes in which? In case of negative answer, can you confirm 

that it can be included as a separate document, preceding Part 1? 

 

Q2: 

The Q&A appendix (update of 01/04) includes a reply to question 9.C, suggesting that each 

consortium partner shall fill in and sign a separate Tender Submission Form. Can you please 

explicitly confirm that this is also the case for a consortium of economic operators which have 

filled and signed a power of attorney? I am referring to the entire Tender submission form 

(Annex II) and not parts of it, which obviously need to be filled by all operators. 

In other words, in case of a consortium, do you ask us to fill a separate, entire tender 

submission form (including parts 1-3 of it) for each consortium partner, which may result to 

numerous forms, bank accounts, annex III declarations, etc per consortium? 

 

Q3: 

Can you please confirm our understanding that for subcontractors we need to provide, 

according to appendix 2 (Conditions for submitting tender) and appendix 3 (specifications): 

 

    Annex IV (signed by tenderer and not subcontractor) 

    Exclusion criteria form of Annex II (signed by each subcontractor) 

    Articles of association or any document reflecting legal status of subcontractor 
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    Proof of technical and professional capacity (SC 4 - 6) 

    Contribution to award criteria 

 

And that we do not need to provide: 

 

    Proof of financial capacity (SC 1 - 3) 

    Annex III and respective power of attorney  

 

Answer 12:  
 

Q1:  

Annex II Tender Submission Form can be included as a separate document, preceding Part 1. 

 

Q2:  

Each partner of the Consortiums of Economic Operators shall fill in and sign a Tender 

Submission Form (Annex II). Points 1 to 5 and point 7 of Annex II shall be individually filled 

in by each economic operator, point 6 could be the same for all economic operators. 

 

Each economic operator shall provide a proof concerning compliance with the exclusion and 

selection criteria (Annex II point 4 and point 5). With regard to the selection criteria, the 

European Parliament may rely on the capacity of the other members of the consortium in 

order to establish whether the tenderer will have the resources needed to perform the contract. 

In this case an undertaking shall be required from those members stating that they will make 

available to the other members the resources needed to perform the contract. 

 

Tenders from consortiums of economic operators must specify the role, qualifications and 

experience of each of the members of the consortium. The tender shall be submitted jointly by 

the economic operators, who shall also assume joint and several liability for the tender 

submission. 

 

Q3: 

In case of subcontracting following documents are mandatory at the tender evaluation stage: 

 

- Annex IV (signed by tenderer and not subcontractor) 

- Exclusion criteria form of Annex II (signed by each subcontractor) 

  

Following documents, if not already provided with the tender, will be required during the 

contract award procedure: 

 

- Letter of intent signed by the subcontractor, confirming his availability to perform the 

duties related to the contract during the contract duration 

 

Furthermore, during the contract award procedure or performance of the contract, the 

European Parliament reserves the right to require tenderers to supply information about the 

financial, economic, technical and professional capacity of the proposed subcontractor(s). 

Likewise, the European Parliament may demand the requisite proof to establish whether the 

subcontractors comply with the requisite exclusion criteria. 
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Question 13:  
 

Can you confirm whether or not it is essential for the tenderer to have 3 years of financial 

account? If a company is a start up, employing personnel with extensive experience in impact 

assessments and evaluations, would the lack of financial data for past periods disqualify it? 

 

Answer 13:  
 

Tenderers shall have sufficient economic and financial resources to enable them to perform 

the contract in compliance with the contractual provisions, given the value and scope thereof.  

 

The tenderer may also rely on the capacity of other entities, irrespective of the legal nature of 

the links between him and those entities. In that case, he must prove to the European 

Parliament that he will have the resources needed to perform the contract, for instance by 

providing an assurance of the undertaking by those entities to make them available to him. In 

that case, the European Parliament is entitled to refuse the application or the tender submitted 

if it has doubts about the undertaking by the third party or about that party’s financial 

capacity. The Parliament may require the tenderer and those other entities to be jointly liable 

for performance of the contract. 

 

Tenderers may also rely on the economic capacities of one or more subcontractors in so far as 

they undertake to take part in the process of performing the contract. In such instances, the 

European Parliament will assess the capacities of the subcontractor(s) in the light of the extent 

to which the latter is/are involved in performing the contract. 

 

Question 14:  
 

Q1: 

We noticed inconsistency between p. 6 of Specifications and p. 4 of Invitation. They are 

highlighted in bold below. What shall we do then? 

 

p. 6 Specifications: Subcontracting is permitted. If the tenderer uses subcontractors, Annex 

IV must be completed and included with the tender. The tender shall give details, as far as 

possible, of that part of the contract which the tenderer proposes to subcontract and the 

identity of the subcontractors. During the contract award procedure or performance of the 

contract the European Parliament reserves the right to require tenderers to supply 

information about the financial, economic, technical and professional capacity of the 

proposed subcontractor(s). Likewise, the European Parliament may demand the requisite 

proof to establish whether the subcontractors comply with the requisite exclusion criteria. 
Tenderers are hereby informed that proposed subcontractors may not be in one of the 

situations described in Articles 106, 107 and 109 of the Financial Regulation, which entail 

exclusion from participation in a contract issued by the European Union. 

 

P. 4 of Invitation: The order and numbering of the sections must be followed without fail. 

... 

Section 2, entitled ‘Supporting documents relating to the exclusion criteria’, must contain: 

- all the documents referred to in point 11 (Exclusion criteria) of the specifications (see Annex 

II, point 4 of the specifications). 
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If the tenderer intends to make use of subcontracting, all the documents referred to above 

must also be provided, without fail, for each subcontractor proposed. 

 

Q2: 

In case subcontractors have to provide documents for exclusion criteria, which are the 

documents? Just the declaration of honour or proof of status, financial docs as well? Even if 

the subcontractor is an individual expert and not a company? 

 

Q3: 

In annex IV we are requested to indicate the following: Value of subcontracted part of 

contract (in EUR and as a percentage of estimated total amount of contract). Since the 

subcontractors cover sectoral expertise, in order to estimate the part subcontracted we would 

need to know how much and of what kind will be the requests within this framework. 

 

Answer 14:  
 

Q1 and Q2: 

In case of subcontracting following documents are mandatory at the tender evaluation stage: 

 

- Annex IV (signed by tenderer and not subcontractor) 

- Exclusion criteria form of Annex II (signed by each subcontractor) 

  

Following documents, if not already provided with the tender, will be required during the 

contract award procedure: 

 

- Letter of intent signed by the subcontractor, confirming his availability to perform the 

duties related to the contract during the contract duration 

 

Furthermore, during the contract award procedure or performance of the contract the, 

European Parliament reserves the right to require tenderers to supply information about the 

financial, economic, technical and professional capacity of the proposed subcontractor(s). 

Likewise, the European Parliament may demand the requisite proof to establish whether the 

subcontractors comply with the requisite exclusion criteria. 

 

Q3: 

At this stage, the European Parliament does not have the specifications of future requests, 

therefore the tenderers should give their best estimation of subcontracting needs, based on 

their internal expertise, and the expertise that should be commissioned via subcontracting.  

 

Estimation on subcontracting may be made on the basis of percentage points – if the 

framework contract is considered to be 100 percentage points (for the total duration of the 

contract), then subcontracting would be ‘X’ percentage points out of 100. Tenderers may also 

attach a description of the sectors that they plan to subcontract. 

 

Question 15:  
 

What do we have to indicate as value of subcontracted part of the contract? Does the “value in 

EUR and the percentage of estimated total amount of contract” need to be provided separately 

for each table/product indicated in “Annex VI- Price list form”? 
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Answer 15:  
 

Estimation on subcontracting shall be made for the total amount of the contract, which could 

be considered to be 100 percentage points (for the total duration of the contract). For that 

purpose Annex IV: Declaration concerning subcontractors shall be filled in. See also Answer 

No 14 / Q3. 

 

 

 


